
 

 

November 21, 2016 
7:00 p.m. 

2nd  Floor Council Chambers  
1095 Duane Street  Astoria OR 97103 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. REPORTS OF COUNCILORS 
 
4. CHANGES TO AGENDA 
 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be adopted by one 
motion unless a member of the City Council requests to have any item considered 
separately. Members of the community may have an item removed if they contact the City 
Manager by 5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. 
(a) City Council Special Meeting Minutes of 11/9/16 
(b) Waiver of Fees for Holiday Downtown Parking 
(c) Intergovernmental Agreement for Marijuana Tax Collection and Distribution with Oregon 

Department of Revenue (Finance) 
 
6. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

All agenda items are open for public comment following deliberation by the City Council. 
Rather than asking for public comment after each agenda item, the Mayor asks that audience 
members raise their hands if they want to speak to the item and they will be recognized. In 
order to respect everyone’s time, comments will be limited to 3 minutes. 
(a) Ordinance Making Certain Determinations and Findings Relating to and Approving the 

First Amendment to the Astor West Urban Renewal Plan (2nd  reading & adoption) 
(Community Development) 

(b) Scandinavian Immigrant Monument – Further Direction Needed (Parks) 
(c) Waterfront Bridges Replacement Project (6th – 11th Streets) Design Update (Public 

Works) 
(d) Liquor License Application from Amanda Cordero, dba Northwest Wild Products, Located 

at 354 Industry Street, for a Greater Privilege for a Limited On-Premises Sales License 
(Finance) 

(e) Change First and Second City Council Meeting Dates in January, 2017 and Second City 
Council Meeting Date in February, 2017 (City Council) 

 
7. NEW BUSINESS & MISCELLANEOUS, PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA) 
 
8. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

(a) ORS 192.660(2)(i) – Performance Evaluations of Public Officers and Employees 
 
 

 

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO THE DISABLED.  AN INTERPRETER FOR THE 
HEARING IMPAIRED MAY BE REQUESTED UNDER THE TERMS OF ORS 192.630 BY 

CONTACTING JULIE YUILL, CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE, 503-325-5824 

 
   



 
 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
   Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 

 
 
 
November 17, 2016 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: ASTORIA CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF NOVEMBER 21, 2016 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Item 5(a): City Council Special Meeting Minutes 
 

The minutes of the City Council Special Meeting of November 9, 2016 are 
enclosed for review.  Unless there are any corrections, it is recommended that 
Council approve these minutes. 

 
Item 5(b): Waiver of Fees for Holiday Downtown Parking 
 

The Association (ADHDA) is requesting that the City Council implement a waiver 
of overtime parking for the upcoming holiday season from Friday, November 25, 
2016 through Monday, January 2, 2017.  The intention is for no enforcement of 
overtime parking in the downtown, which includes the Heritage Square parking 
lot, as well as on-street parking; however, tickets will still be written for other 
violations in the Parking District, including parking by downtown employees 
within the District.  The City of Astoria has approved this request of ADHDA for 
several consecutive years; therefore, it is recommended that Council approve 
this request. 

 
Item 5(c): Intergovernmental Agreement for Marijuana Tax Collection and Distribution 

with Oregon Department of Revenue (Finance) 
 

At its February 16, 2016 meeting, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 16-02 
imposing a three percent tax on the sale of marijuana items by a recreational 
marijuana retailer and referring the ordinance to the electors of Astoria.  In 
addition, at its March 7, 2016 meeting, Council adopted Resolution No. 16-03 
which referred a three percent local option tax on the sale of recreational 
marijuana sales to the electors; therefore, Local Ballot Measure 4-180 was 
placed on the General Election ballot and on November 8, 2016 it passed.  With 
the passage of this measure, the Oregon Department of Revenue has drafted 
and provided an Intergovernmental Agreement to implement the collection and 
distribution of local option taxes on the sale of marijuana for the City of Astoria.  It 
is recommended that Council approve the Intergovernmental Agreement with the 
Oregon Department of Revenue for the collection and distribution of a three 
percent tax on recreational marijuana sales. 

 



Page 2 of 3 

REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Item 6(a): Ordinance Making Certain Determinations and Findings Relating to and 

Approving the First Amendment to the Astor West Urban Renewal Plan (2nd 
reading & adoption) (Community Development) 

 
The Astoria City Council held a hearing and first reading of this ordinance on 
November 7, 2016 to gain input regarding the Council’s consideration and 
potential adoption of the proposed Astor West Urban Renewal Plan First 
Amendment (the Amendment).  The Amendment is designed for the Astor West 
Urban Renewal Area (Area), an area of 217.55 acres.  The reason for urban 
renewal is to provide a financing mechanism to fund improvements including 
transportation, storefront grants, and redevelopment and housing assistance.  
The proposed amendment to the Plan would expand the Area to include right-of-
way as well as City-owned land to widen Bond Street and permit the use of urban 
renewal funds for the new projects to be added in the Plan as identified in Table 
11 of the “Report Accompanying the First Amendment”.  In addition to the street 
aspect, there are underinvested residential properties that potentially need 
assistance (i.e., grants/ loans/technical assistance) to renovate and preserve as 
affordable housing, which is another Fiscal Year 2015-16 Council Goal.  Staff has 
met with the Community Action Team about a targeted pilot program that would 
offer some form of assistance to qualified property owners to renovate multi-
family buildings while still meeting Development Code design requirements.  A 
potential housing program will be brought to the Astoria Development 
Commission for review at a future date.  The proposed Amendment requires an 
ordinance to implement the changes.  It is recommended that the City Council 
hold the second reading of the ordinance and adopt the First Amendment to the 
Astor West Urban Renewal Plan. 

 
Item 6(b): Scandinavian Immigrant Monument – Further Direction Needed (Parks) 
 

At its August 15, 2016 meeting, the City Council gave direction to establish an 
agreement that meets the needs of the Astoria Scandinavian Heritage 
Association (ASHA) and the Parks and Recreation Department to construct and 
maintain a Scandinavian Immigrant Monument at People Place Park.  Since 
Council provided this direction, Parks Director Cosby has been working with 
Loran Mathews, ASHA President, to come to a mutually agreeable maintenance 
plan; however, this has been unattainable.  Included in Director Cosby’s agenda 
memo are the sequences of meetings and discussions that have occurred during 
2016 regarding the development, construction and maintenance of the proposed 
monument.  It is recommended that Council provide direction regarding the 
Scandinavian Immigrant Memorial Monument at People Place Park and their 
intent for maintenance responsibilities.   

 
Item 6(c): Waterfront Bridges Replacement Project (6th – 11th Streets) Design Update 

(Public Works) 
 

The Waterfront Bridges Replacement Project is currently in the design phase and 
the project team has developed alternatives for the visual design elements of the 
bridges.  Due to the relatively small area of each bridge and the mandated 
restrictions, there are really only two components of the structure that can be 



Page 3 of 3 

modified; lighting and pedestals.  Sketches of the two alternatives are included with 
the Council packet. It is recommended that Council approve submitting two options 
to ODOT and proceeding with final design of the ODOT-approved option.  

 
Item 6(d): Liquor License Application from Amanda Cordero, dba Northwest Wild 

Products, Located at 354 Industry Street, for a Greater Privilege for a 
Limited On-Premises Sales License (Finance) 

 
A Liquor License Application has been filed by Amanda Cordero, doing business 
as Northwest Wild Products, located at 345 Industry Street, Astoria.  The 
application is for a Greater Privilege for a Limited On-Premises Sales License.  
The appropriate departments have reviewed the application.  A report provided 
by the Police Department which conveys information gathered during the 
investigation is attached to the application for reference.  No objections to 
approval were noted.  It is recommended that Council consider approval of the 
application. 

 
Item 6(e): Change First and Second City Council Meeting Dates in January, 2017 and 

Second City Council Meeting Date in February, 2017 (City Council) 
 

Astoria City Hall will be closed on Monday, January 2, 2017 for New Year’s Day, 
Monday January 16, 2017 for Martin Luther King, Jr., Day, and Monday, February 
20, 2017 for Presidents’ Day; therefore, the first and second Council meeting 
dates in January and the second meeting date in February will need to be 
changed.  In years prior it has been the tradition to hold City Council meeting on 
the following day.  It is recommended that Council set alternate meeting dates for 
the holidays noted above. 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Item 8(a): ORS 192.660(2)(i) – Performance Evaluations of Public Officers and 

Employees 
 

The City Council will meet in executive session to discuss a performance 
evaluation. 

 



  

Page 1 of 1  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  July 25, 2016 

CITY OF ASTORIA      CITY COUNCIL JOURNAL OF PROCEEDINGS  
City Council Chambers 
November 9, 2016 
 
A special meeting of the Astoria Common Council was held at the above place at the hour of 4:00 pm. 
 
Councilors Present:  Nemlowill (via telephone), Warr, Mayor LaMear.  Ward 2 is vacant. 
 
Councilors Excused: Price 
 
Staff Present: Police Chief/Assistant City Manager Johnston, Finance Director Brooks, Public Works Director 
Cook, Assistant City Engineer Crater, and City Attorney Henningsgaard.   
 
Item 3: Fuel System Replacement Project Pay Adjustment #1 (Public Works) 
 
Assistant City Engineer Nathan Crater presented a brief overview of the fuel system replacement project.  First, 
Pay Adjustment #1 includes items necessary to provide better corrosion resistance and longevity to the above 
ground fuel tank, and a Spill Prevention, Control, and Containment (SPCC) plan and associated work 
(concrete containment pad, installation of catch basin, oil stop valve, piping, etc.) to comply with EPA 
regulations.  Second, after finalizing the location of the new above ground storage tanks, it became apparent 
that a SPCC would be required based on the site drainage, proximity to the river, and capacity of the new 
tank.  The Fuel Tank Replacement Project is budgeted in the Capital Improvement and funds are available for 
the additional $26,567.50 associated with Pay Adjustment #1. The initial bid and subsequent pay adjustment 
exceed the budgeted amount; therefore, a budget amendment will be required at the end of the fiscal   year. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Warr, seconded by Councilor Nemlowill, to authorize Pay 
Adjustment #1 in the amount of $26,567.50. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Nemlowill, Warr, and 
Mayor LaMear; Nays: None.  Councilor Price was absent and Ward 2 is vacant. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 4:08 pm.  
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________ ________________________________ 
Finance Director Chief of Police/Assistant City Manager 



















































































































































 
 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
   Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 

 
 
 
November 16, 2016 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT:  SCANDINAVIAN IMMIGRANT MONUMENT, FURTHER DIRECTION NEEDED 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
During the Monday, August 15th regular meeting, City Council gave direction to establish an 
agreement that meets the needs of the Astoria Scandinavian Heritage Association (ASHA) and 
the Parks and Recreation Department to construct and maintain a Scandinavian Immigrant 
Monument at People Place Park.  Since the City Council provided this direction, Parks staff 
has been working with Loran Mathews, Astoria Scandinavian Heritage Association President, 
to come to a mutually agreeable maintenance plan; however, this has been achieved.  
 
Department Staff, Spring 2016 
 
Prior to the proposal being presented to City Council, Parks and Recreation Department staff 
reviewed the proposal and provided feedback in Spring of 2016 regarding maintenance needs 
and shared concerns about the Parks and Recreation Department’s ability to maintain the 
monument. Staff shared that over the past decade we have seen some unattractive sites as 
well as hazardous conditions develop, and citizens demanding higher levels of care.  
 
At the conclusion of these conversations, staff shared the success that partners like the 
Friends of the Astoria Column and the Friends of McClure Park have had in making additions 
and improvements to Park sites in conjunction with adopting the site and assisting with 
maintenance responsibilities. Staff suggested that ASHA consider their ability to contribute to 
the maintenance of the monument and Park as it would be needed to keep the monument in a 
safe and attractive state and expressed that based on recent discussions relating to the Parks 
and Recreation Comprehensive Master Plan that Park Advisory Board Members may also 
have concerns about adding an additional park amenity/requirement without the resources to 
maintain it.  
 
Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, June 2016 
 
During the June 22, 2016 Parks and Recreation Advisory Board meeting, Loran Mathews, and 
Carol Lyngstad (ASHA Treasurer) presented the proposal to the Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Board. The presentation included images and a description of the proposed 
monument and surrounding site. Loran and Carol added that the monument could help fill 
Astoria’s shortage of urban plazas identified in the Parks and Recreation Comprehensive Plan 



Page 2 of 4 

and that there is a large amount of support in the community for the monument and volunteers 
could help maintain the site.  
 
Following this presentation, Park and Recreation Advisory Board members and the ASHA 
representatives discussed partnering together to build a low maintenance design and how to 
maintain the monument and park.  ASHA representatives stated that they had a large number 
of multi-generational volunteers able to assist with maintenance of the monument and park, 
and believed they could make adoption commitments, to the park and set an example for the 
City and community on how to establish future partnerships, as recommended by the Parks 
and Recreation Comprehensive Master Plan.  
 
Based on this discussion and ASHA’s commitment to adopt and maintain the sites, the Parks 
and Recreation Advisory Board provided a recommendation based upon a formal adoption 
agreement of the park. The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board concluded that the ASHA 
would need to include not only fundraising for construction but for the monuments ongoing 
care and maintenance and unanimously agreed to recommend the Scandinavian monument 
project to City Council contingent upon a formal park adoption agreement.  
 
City Council, August 2016 
 
During the August 15, 2016 regular City Council meeting, Loran and other ASHA members 
presented the proposal to the City Council. The presentation included the images and a 
description of the proposed monument and surrounding site. Following the presentation, City 
Council discussed an agenda item to provide direction for a possible Scandinavian Immigrant 
Memorial Monument to be located at People Place Park.  During the Council meeting, ASHA 
shared a perspective different from the Park’s Board presentation that they were an aging 
group and “too old to volunteer” to maintain the monument and adopt the Park and without the 
resources to do so.  At the conclusion of this discussion, City Council gave direction to 
establish an agreement that meets the needs of the Astoria Scandinavian Heritage Association 
(ASHA) and the Parks and Recreation Department to construct and maintain a Scandinavian 
Immigrant Memorial Monument at People Place Park. 
 
Department Staff, September 2016 
  
Since City Council provided this direction, staff has been working with Loran Mathews, Astoria 
Scandinavian Heritage Association President to create a mutually agreeable plan.  To try and 
bridge the gap, Parks staff asked if ASHA would be willing to commit to maintaining just the 
monument versus the entire park site. They responded that they could not, and that they do 
not have the resources or volunteers to make any commitments.  I explained that although 
ASHA was not asking the City for funds to build it, ASHA was asking to build it on City land, 
and asking to City to care for and maintain it, which comes at a cost.  Staff concluded the 
conversation explaining, that although they believe the Scandinavian Immigrant Monument 
would be a wonderful addition to People Place Park, the Parks Department is struggling 
because under current funding scenarios they do not have the ability to maintain it without 
taking away maintenance resources from other parks in the City.  Staff has reviewed how the 
increased maintenance requirements at People Place Park with the monument (and increased 
pedestrian traffic) would reduce resources for maintenance at other park sites.  This would in 
effect decreased maintenance at those other parks, assuming there would not be additional 
City funds budgeted specifically for maintaining this park.  



Page 3 of 4 

Currently, the City contracts with Greensmith Landscaping to provide grounds maintenance at 
People Place Park, while the Parks and Recreation Department staff are responsible for 
garbage removal, tree trimming, and the various unforeseen maintenance needs. Below is a 
chart representing our current standard annual maintenance costs in addition to the 
maintenance the monument would require.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As you can see the needed annual 
maintenance cost would be minimal with the 
proposed low maintenance design. The 
challenge is the Parks and Recreation 
Department’s requirements far exceeds its 
resources, and the addition of any park land 
or amenity without the resources to maintain 
it will only increase the imbalance.  As you 
are aware, staff is preparing an analysis of 
funds needed to sustain current levels of 
services or conversely options for Parks 
service cuts, should additional funds not be 
secured.  If Council provides direction that 
the City should maintain the monument, this 
will be factored in to the overall analysis of funds needed to sustain the Department in the 
future, or conversely will be factored in as an item to remain in place should service cuts in 
other areas be needed. 



Page 4 of 4 

The issue at hand before City Council is a request for Council to provide clarification as to the 
intent of the motion where it was stated an agreement should be developed that meets the 
needs of ASHA and the City.  Both ASHA and Parks staff feel that having additional direction 
from Council would provide better clarity.  Representatives from ASHA and Park’s staff will be 
present to answer questions. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that Council provide direction regarding the Scandinavian Immigrant 
Memorial Monument at People Place Park and their intent for maintenance responsibilities.   
 
 

By: ________________________________ 
Angela Cosby  
Director of Parks & Recreation 

 
 



 

 
 
 
 
PROPOSAL FOR MEMO OF AGREEMENT: 
 
 
1. The Astoria Scandinavian Heritage Association (ASHA) will develop a design to 
enhance the current city park located between 15th and 16th street on the Astoria 
Riverwalk. The Scandinavian Immigrant Park will honor the thousands of Scandinavian 
immigrants who settled in the North Coast region and whose values are imprinted in our 
community. 
 
2.  ASHA will work with the City of Astoria Parks and Rec Department, Engineering 
Department, Community Development, Historical Landmarks Commission, and Design 
Review Committee and others as necessary to develop a design that is as low 
maintenance and permanent as possible.  
 
3. ASHA will provide for power washing the completed park twice a year for three years. 
 
 4. ASHA will organize the Scandinavian community (ASHA, festival committee, lodges) 
for spring “Chip-In” park clean-up in the spring for three years.  
 
5.  ASHA will work with community service groups that may want to “adopt” the park as 
a service project. 
 
6.  ASHA will encourage members of the Scandinavian community to continue to assist 
in park maintenance and clean up in the future and to renew this agreement  at its 
conclusion.  
 
 
 
 
Signed: _________________________________           Date: ___________________ 
               Loran Mathews, President 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
Rationale:  
 
Members of the Scandinavian Immigrant Park Committee have been meeting with the 
City of Astoria Parks and Rec director since the fall of 2015. In June 2016 AHSA 
presented their design proposal to the Parks and Rec board and received authorization 
to present to the City Council. In August 2016 Councilor Zetty Nemlowill made a motion 
seconded by councilor Russ Warr for the City of Astoria Park and Rec Department to 
make an agreement with ASHA that both groups can live with so that this civic project 
can move forward. Members of the Immigrant Park Committee met with Parks and Rec 
Director Cosby and there was discussion concerning misunderstanding between what 
the Parks and Rec Board thought they had agreed to and what the City Council had 
approved. In discussing these differences with City Manager Bret Estes and after his 
discussion with Mayor LaMear it was decided that we should discuss this further with 
the City Council at their meeting on Nov. 21. 
 
Momentum for the Scandinavian Immigrant Park proposal is at a standstill until the 
Astoria Scandinavian Heritage Association receives approval from the City to proceed.  
We are proposing an agreement that we feel can be accomplished by our members and 
hope that we can move forward as soon as possible as our project has been well 
received both locally and from outside the immediate area. Several donors are anxious 
to move forward with design, costs and construction. 



Scandinavian Immigrant Park Proposal 

The Astoria Scandinavian Heritage Association is the non-profit partner of the Astoria Scandinavian 
Midsummer Festival Association.  
 

The Mission of ASHA is preserve traditional Scandinavian culture and  heritage through educational 
opportunities in areas of customs, language, food and the arts and to educate the citizens of Clatsop County 
and surrounding areas about the culture and heritage of the Scandinavian countries. 
 

City of Astoria: According to the 1910 census there were 9599 inhabitants in Astoria and 35 % of the 
population identified as Scandinavian. The proposed Scandinavian Immigrant Park will honor the immigrant 
tradition that brought thousands of Scandinavians to Oregon’s North Coast in the late 1800s and early 1900s. 
It will be erected in a public space to make locals and visitors aware of the ethnic heritage that contributed 
immensely to the fabric of our community. It will honor families that said their last good-bye in Scandinavia 
and moved to Astoria to become Americans. The park will educate locals and visitors about the City’s rich 
history that has been influenced by its citizens from Scandinavia.  
 

The proposed Scandinavian Immigrant Park will fill a need mentioned in the City of Astoria Parks and Rec 
Master Plan for more urban plaza space.  ASHA intends to work with Parks and Rec throughout the planning 
process to gain their input and approval for the design.  The proposed park is NOT a new park but an 
enhancement to a current park already under Parks and Rec jurisdiction. 

  Footprint of proposed park enhancement 

Street View from Marine Drive Sample of Bas-relief Sculpture 

The proposed park is at the site of the former 
People’s Park on Marine Drive between 15th and 
16th. The park is bordered on the north by the 
Astoria Trolley tracks, the River Walk, and the 
Columbia River. Marine Drive is on the south and 
the park is close to the Welcome to Astoria sign 
and the Columbia River Maritime Museum.  The 
park will be visible, accessible, and welcoming. 
 
Details and more information are available at: 
       www.fromscandinaviatoastoria.org 






















	Agenda 11-21-16
	Agenda Memo 11-21-16
	5(a) CC Minutes 11-9-16 Special
	5(c) IGA for Marijuana Tax
	6(a) AWURD First Amendment
	6(b) Scandinavian Monument
	6(c) Waterfront Bridges Project
	6(d) NW Wild Liquor License

